TFOME Final  Answers to Questions received  through July 16, 2004

RFP # 04-C4E-002

                                                                                                            July 20, 2004



	
	Original Submittal Date
	Question

	1. 
	07/16/04
	Section L.15, Fee - the RFP states, “Include or Form A, the maximum available fee amount proposed.”  Should the sentence read, “Include or Form A, the maximum available fee amount proposed, or fixed fee, as appropriate.”?
Answer :
Offerors are to use a set Award Fee of 7.5% (in CY 1,2,3,9,10) and Fixed Fee of 5% (in CY 4,5,6,7,8).  Offerors should disregard the sentence:  “Include on Form A, the maximum available award fee amount proposed.”  in L.15 Form A instructions.



	2. 
	07/16/04
	The answer to Question 50 states, “The labor identified in Section J.1(i) includes all staff required to perform the work identified in the SOW, Section 3.”  Does the “staff required to perform the work” include first line supervisors and managers?
Answer :
No.


	3. 
	07/16/04
	The answer to Question 50 also states, “The labor identified in J.1.(i) does not include business functions identified in SOW Section 4.”  Does the labor identified in J.1.(i) include other Offer labor requirements not identified in SOW Section 4 such as clerical functions that support technical work?

Answer :
Yes.



	4. 
	07/16/04
	Does the labor requirement in J.1(i) include safety support as defined in the SOW?

Answer :
Yes.



	5. 
	07/16/04
	SOW Section 3.1.1.1 – Generate a Work Plan.  Are all offerors to assume that only engineers and technicians labor costs are included in section J1(i) and that the business function(s) associated with program control are to be priced separately as part of the requirements of the SOW section 4?
Answer :
Yes.  L.15 Form B instructions state:  “For proposal preparation and evaluation purposes only, Offerors are to use the annual FTE labor mix as shown on Section J.1(i).  These labor FTE and rates are for non-managerial positions, that perform work described in the SOW, Section 3, and do not include Offeror required business functions, SOW, Section 4, such as management, first line supervision, accounting, HR, clerical and other Offeror labor requirements.  These business functions must be added to the Offerors proposal in accordance with the Offeror’s unique estimating methodologies.  A written description and explanation of these functions shall be provided with the cost proposal.”


	6. 
	07/16/04
	Section L.15 - Should all offerors assume that the hourly wages shown in Section J.1(i)  are accurate as of March 3, 2005, or do these rates need to be escalated by the 2005 escalation factor prior to contract start?

Answer :
The rates need to be escalated by the 2005 escalation factor prior to contract start.



	7. 
	07/16/04
	In Section L.15 - Form B, would support labor functions not identified in SOW Section 4, such as purchasing, property control and funds control be considered “Other categories to capture direct charge labor requirements not identified in J.1(i)”?

 Answer :
These labor functions are not included in J1(i) and should be accounted for in Form B (direct) or Form F (indirect).


	8. 
	07/16/04
	Section L.15 - Phase B is not scheduled to begin until contract year 2.  Should Form C be completed with the plug number in year 1, or simply start (non pro rated) in contract year 2?

 Answer :
The Offerors shall provide a completed Form C for each contract phase (A,B,C), and for the total contract.  Pro-rate the RFP plug numbers for the first contract year of Phase B and C.



	9. 
	07/16/04
	Section L.15 – Form C and Form E, since the start of contract years 2 and 3 do not coincide with start dates of Phases B and C, should the offeror use the RFP plug numbers or prorate the plug numbers for the first contract year of each of Phase B and C?

Answer :
The Offerors shall provide a completed Form C and Form E for each contract phase (A,B,C), and for the total contract.  Pro-rate the RFP plug numbers for the first contract year of Phase B and C.



	10. 
	07/16/04
	Section L.15 – Form C, do we assume the earliest date (August 1, 2006) or latest date (August 1, 2010) in Section F.2 for pricing purposes of Phase C?

 Answer :
The Offerors should use the earliest date for Phase C (August 1, 2006) for pricing purposes.  See chart in L.15.D Forms Instructions.



	11. 
	07/16/04
	Sections L.15 – Form D, are “separate and complete cost proposal packages” required from all cost-reimbursable subcontractors or only those that meet the criteria of “major subcontracts”?
Answer :
The Offerors should provide “separate and complete cost proposal packages” for major subcontractors only, as defined in L.15 Form D Instructions.



	12. 
	07/16/04
	Section L.15 – Form F, will the Government provide the incumbents’ benefits so that the offeror can demonstrate comparability?

Answer :
The Government will NOT provide a description of the fringe benefits that are currently being offered to the incumbent contractor employees.  Offerors should disregard the sentence:  "If incumbent contractor employees are planned to be utilized on the contract, demonstrate the comparability in value to the employees, of proposed fringe benefits to those currently being received by the employees" in L.15 Form F instructions. 



	13. 
	07/16/04
	Section L.15 – Form F, instructions for completion of Form B instruct offerors to price three weeks of vacation for incumbent employees.  For pricing purposes what other absences or paid time off should be assumed?
Answer :
The Offerors should assume one week sick/misc. leave per year.



	14. 
	07/16/04
	Section M.2(e)(3)d. – Please explain the term “Services” as it is used in the first column heading in the chart.

Answer :
The term “Services” as it is used in the first column heading in the chart should be Percent Range.  The percentage for determining the Mission Suitability cost realism adjustment is computed by dividing the difference between the Offeror's proposed and probable cost, by the proposed cost.


	15. 
	07/16/04
	SOW 3.3.3 includes clerical and work control as functions that are direct labor.  Aren’t clerical and work control functions considered under SOW section 4?  If these functions are in SOW 3.3.3 then they are in the labor categories provided by the government and are to be priced as DL; if they are considered Management and Administration, then they are to be priced with the offerors other Program Support costs priced as part of SOW section 4.  Please clarify.
Answer :
Section J1(i) includes all labor necessary to perform the work identified in SOW Section 3, (i.e. clerical support for test report preparation, technicians and engineers utilizing the 7i work control system in the performance of their duties).  Labor associated with the management and administration of the contract (i.e. clerical support for the Program manager, supervision/oversight of work), is not included in J1(i).  L.15 Form B instructions state:  “For proposal preparation and evaluation purposes only, Offerors are to use the annual FTE labor mix as shown on Section J.1(i).  These labor FTE and rates are for non-managerial positions, that perform work described in the SOW, Section 3, and do not include Offeror required business functions, SOW, Section 4, such as management, first line supervision, accounting, HR, clerical and other Offeror labor requirements.  These business functions must be added to the Offerors proposal in accordance with the Offeror’s unique estimating methodologies.  A written description and explanation of these functions shall be provided with the cost proposal.”


	16. 
	07/16/04
	Will the successful bidder be able to utilize “CMS”, the web-based task estimating and control system developed on GESS?  Can offerors use this capability in their proposal, if they wish?  Does the government have a preference on the use of this system like they do with 7(i), which is specifically mentioned in the RFP SOW?
Answer :
The Offerors may propose the use of existing systems.  The government will evaluate the Offerors proposals as described in Section M.


	17. 
	07/16/04
	RFP  M.2 Cost Resource Subfactor – Control of Indirect Costs addresses “travel and associated costs”; ”Training”; and “Awards, Bonuses”;  However, Section L (Cost Form E) refers  to these costs as “other direct costs to be charged directly to the contract”.  Please clarify, are these cost elements true Other Direct Costs (ODCs) or Indirect Costs?

Answer :
It is the Government’s intention to evaluate the Offerors approach to control non-direct labor types of costs (both indirect and other direct costs).  The term “indirect cost” has a different meaning in L.15 


	18. 
	07/16/04
	RFP M.2 Cost Resource Subfactor – Control of Indirect Costs – Contract Costs.  Is the use of the term “Contract Costs” under the title “Control of Indirect Costs” interpreted to be a broader definition that includes all Program Support Costs as well as corporate G&As and Overhead i.e. ALL contract costs other than Labor and ODCs? 
Answer :
The use of the term “Contract Costs” under the title “Control of Indirect Costs” should be interpreted to be a broader definition that includes all Program Support Costs as well as corporate G&As, Overhead, and ODCs, i.e. ALL contract costs other than Labor.



	19. 
	07/16/04
	Some of the direct labor categories in RFP section J1(i) appear to possibly be categories considered  Program Support Labor under Management and Administration (i.e., SOW section 4 labor – Direct Program Support) and not intended by the Government to be populated from J1(i)  as Direct Labor on Cost form B.

J1(i) phase C – Secretary III, Secretary IV, Secretary V

J1(i) phase C – Buyer, Work Control Specialists

J1(i) phase B – Electrical Engineer IV

Closer review of some of these J1(i) categories when compared to the instructions to L.15 – cost form B ( “first line supervision, clerical or other Offeror labor requirements NOT identified in J1(i)”) would appear to be confusing some DL with Program Support Labor (Section 3 vs. section 4 of the SOW) .  Confusion over which functions are clearly Direct Labor (J1(i) and which ones constitute “Management/Supervision, Professional/Admin, Clerical Support First Line Supervision, Accounting, HR, and  Other Offeror labor requirements NOT identified in J1(i)”  might cause offerors to inadvertently under price the full requirements of SOW section 4  - Management and administration, thinking these support functions are already in the DL.   Please clarify.

Answer :
Attachment J1(i) includes all labor necessary to perform the work identified in SOW Section 3, (i.e. clerical support for test report preparation, technicians and engineers utilizing the 7i work control system in the performance of their duties).  Labor associated with the management and administration of the contract (i.e. clerical support for the Program manager, supervision/oversight of work), is not included in J1(i).  L.15 Form B instructions state:  “For proposal preparation and evaluation purposes only, Offerors are to use the annual FTE labor mix as shown on Section J.1(i).  These labor FTE and rates are for non-managerial positions, that perform work described in the SOW, Section 3, and do not include Offeror required business functions, SOW, Section 4, such as management, first line supervision, accounting, HR, clerical and other Offeror labor requirements.  These business functions must be added to the Offerors proposal in accordance with the Offeror’s unique estimating methodologies.  A written description and explanation of these functions shall be provided with the cost proposal.” 


	20. 
	07/16/04
	What are the anticipated numbers of funding transactions per contract year that need to be administered by the contractor?  This will assist offerors in estimating the resources required for the funds control function.

Answer :
It is the Governments intent to minimize the number of funding transactions.  There is insufficient information at this time to accurately estimate the number of transactions which may occur.


	21. 
	07/15/04
	RFP paragraphs L.13.2e and M.2(c)2e

We have a concern in relation to providing resumes and letters of intent for all key personnel, as required in RFP paragraph L.13.2e.  Some of the people we intend to use in these positions cannot provide these required documents during the proposal phase.  Yet these individuals have been highly effective performers for NASA at GRC for many years, and represent a significant investment and learning curve issue for NASA.  Presently, all we can do is identify these key individuals in our proposal, and provide what relevant information we have been able to gather concerning these same value-added performers.  We are confident, however, that these individuals will continue on in their present positions in RTD/PMBO testing support efforts if we are selected.

Our concern is that strictly speaking, such a proposal approach would make us non responsive to the RFP Section paragraph L.13.2e.  Accordingly, we request that RFP paragraph L.13.2e indicate that resumes and letters of intent will be provided on an “if the selected individuals are able to provide them” basis, or would the government consider removing the requirement for commitment letters for incumbent employees.  

Answer :
The current language in L.13.2e:  “The Offeror shall demonstrate the degree of commitment of the individuals identified to fill key positions (as demonstrated, for example, by letters of intent and resumes, these letters/resumes shall not count against the page limit for this section.) as well as the Offeror’s commitment to use the individuals proposed.” does not specifically require letters of intent.


	22. 
	07/15/04
	SOW paragraph 4.7.1

Our concern with the second sentence of this paragraph is that a consequential damages clause is being included in an 8(a) set aside contract.  Further, who would determine, and how would they determine what constituted “inadequate maintenance”?    Accordingly, we request that the second sentence of SOW 4.7.1 be deleted.

Answer :
Disregard the sentence:  “The Contractor shall be liable for damage to Government systems and equipment, or loss of revenue due to research facility downtime, resulting from the inadequate maintenance of critical spares.” in the SOW paragraph 4.7.1.  The SOW will be amended upon contract award.



	23. 
	07/15/04
	RFP paragraph L.13.2c

This paragraph refers to a “simplified position description for each skill category” which we could not find.  It also referenced paragraph L.17, which is not included in the RFP.  Please clarify. In this regard, we would also like to understand the annual productive labor hours associated with (1) FTE.
Answer :
The Offerors should disregard: “…and a simplified position description for each skill category (See Provision L.17).” in L.13.2c. 

 See answers to questions 13 and 29 for clarification of productive labor hours.



	24. 
	07/15/04
	NASA GRC answer to Question 51

The answer referred to a revised RFP paragraph L.7.  In the final RFP, paragraph L.7 was not revised.  Please clarify.

Answer :
L.7 was not revised.  The Mission Suitability Volume I should include the plan described in L.14.4: “For evaluation purposes, the required documentation shall include a safety, health, and environmental management plan at a high overview level.  Areas to be discussed can be found at provision L.7 above.  This overview will be included in the proposal page count.”  A more detailed plan must be completed and submitted by the successful Offeror.



	25. 
	07/15/04
	RFP paragraphs H.2, L.7, L13.4, M.2(c)4, SOW 2.1.1, and SOW Appendix 3

To be responsive, RFP paragraph L.13.4 says we have to submit a “…safety, health, and environmental management plan at a high overview level.  Areas to be discussed can be found at provision L.7 above.”  Paragraph L.7 is a “Safety and Health Plan (GRC 52.223-95)(AUG 2002)”.  This paragraph then references NASA Glenn Safety Manual, Chapter 17, Appendices.  However, RFP paragraph H.2 is a Safety and Health Plan (NFARS 1852.223-70 (APRIL 2002).  This RFP paragraph says that this NASA FAR Supplement Plan should also be submitted by the “Offeror”.  SOW 2.1.1 says something called a Safety Plan shall be submitted prior to “commencing work under this contract.”  SOW 2.1 references SOW Appendix 3, which does include among its contents “GRC’s Safety Manual”.  Please clarify which plan has to be submitted with the Mission Suitability Volume I.

Also, since this is the submittal of a Draft Plan (during the proposal phase) that will later become contractual after approval by the Contracting Officer, would NASA GRC please reconsider the stated page count limitations.  Our request is that any surrounding text be included against the Volume I page count limit, but the Draft Plan itself would not be included against the Volume I page count limit.

Answer :
The Mission Suitability Volume I should include the plan described in L.14.4: “For evaluation purposes, the required documentation shall include a safety, health, and environmental management plan at a high overview level.  Areas to be discussed can be found at provision L.7 above.  This overview will be included in the proposal page count.”  A more detailed plan must be completed and submitted by the successful Offeror.



	26. 
	07/15/04
	RFP Section L.15.D, Form B

The RFP States the following: "Include in the supporting information..., differential payments for multi-shift or non-standard workweek schedules".  Would the Government provide a historical percentage of Shift hours, relative to the straight time hours?

Answer :
For cost proposal purposes only, the Offerors should assume no shift differential payments.


	27. 
	07/15/04
	RFP Attachment J.(i) 

"FTE and Average Hourly Rates for Non-Managerial Positions, that Perform Work Described in the SOW, Section 3".  Do the average hourly pay rates represent the average pay for the last year on the current contracts?  If so, should they be used as-is on the assumed contract start date of March 3, 2005, then escalated onwards (9 annual escalations), or should they be escalated first to account for the one year duration between the time they were collected and contract start, then onward for the contract years (10 Annual escalations)?
Similarly, should Phase-B and Phase-C rates be used as-is on their respective start dates of April and August of 2006 or should they be escalated first to account for the two year duration between the time they were collected and their respective contract start dates ?

Answer :
The average hourly wage rates provided in J1(i), for all phases, are in $2004, The rates need to be escalated by the appropriate escalation factor.



	28. 
	07/15/04
	RFP Section L.15.D. Form B 

The RFP States the following: "Wage/salary increases. All Offerors shall utilize the following uniform rates of change".  Considering that the RFP-Provided Escalation Rates Table is presented by Calendar Years, and considering that the Contract Years do not align with the Calendar Years, are the offerors expected to map or derive the Contract Years Escalation Rates from that table on a weighted average approach, or simply use the table Calendar Year Rates for or as the Contract Years escalation rates?

Answer :
The Offerors are expected to map or derive the Contract Years Escalation Rates from the RFP-Provided Escalation Rates Table using a weighted average approach.



	29. 
	07/15/04
	RFP Section L.15.D. Form B  

The RFP States the following: "(assume 5 years service/three weeks vacation for each employee for costing purposes only)".  Considering a standard 40 hour work week, a typical year would have 2080 Hours. Deducting from that the RFP assumed 120 Vacation Hours/Year, and the Government-required 80 Holiday hours/Year, the only variable left is the absence hours for sick and other miscellaneous absences.  Would the Government provide contract historical or assumed data on the sick and other miscellaneous absence hours so that all offerors are using the same FTE productive hours per year?

Answer :
The Offerors should assume one week sick/misc. leave per year.


	30. 
	07/15/04
	General

Is the Phase-In cost part of the Cost Evaluation criteria? Would a proposed Phase-In cost have an adverse affect on the cost evaluation of a non-incumbent Offeror?

Answer :
Phase-In cost is part of the VOLUME III - COST/PRICE PROPOSAL and will be evaluated according to M.2(e).



	31. 
	07/15/04
	RFP Section L.15.D, Form F 

“Fringe Benefits”.  The RFP States the following: "If incumbent contractor employees are planned to be utilized on the contract, demonstrate the comparability in value to the employees, of proposed fringe benefits to those currently being received by the employees".  Will the Government provide a description of the fringe benefits that are currently being offered to the incumbent contractor employees, so that such a demonstration is possible?
Answer :
The Government will NOT provide a description of the fringe benefits that are currently being offered to the incumbent contractor employees.  Offerors should disregard the sentence:  "If incumbent contractor employees are planned to be utilized on the contract, demonstrate the comparability in value to the employees, of proposed fringe benefits to those currently being received by the employees" in L.15 Form F instructions. 



	32. 
	07/15/04
	RFP Section M.2.C.3.c. Control of Indirect Costs (RFP Page 72)

"Government Cost".   Please explain how Government Cost Elements i, ii, & iii, may differ from one offeror to another.  What are the government costs for the current contract and how will these costs be evaluated?

Answer :
It is the Government’s intention to evaluate the Offerors approach to control non-direct labor types of costs (both indirect and other direct costs) in VOLUME I - MISSION SUITABILITY.  

The Government anticipates that some costs may be difficult to estimate due to a lack of historical data or known future requirements.  For VOLUME III - COST/PRICE PROPOSAL, the Offerors shall include the Government estimates for these costs, as directed in L.15.
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